BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

MINUTES of the Meeting of the Board of Police Commissioners held at the
Southington Police Department Community Room on December 10, 2009.

The meeting is called to order by Chairman Verderame at 6:00 p.m.
Commissioners Nevelos, Della Vecchia, Pestillo and Bedard were present.

Chief John Daly was present

Chairman Verderame turns the meeting over to Chief Daly so that
nominations can be made for the position of Chairman.

Chief Daly calls for a nomination for the position of Chairman.

Commissioner Bedard nominates Commissioner James Verderame for the
position of Chairman. Commissioner Della Vecchia seconds the nomination. All
Commissioners in favor, James Verderame is elected Chairman of the Board of
Police Commissioners.

Meeting 1s turned over to Chairman Verderame.

Chairman Verderame calls for a nomination for the position of Vice
Chairman. Commissioner Bedard nominates Commissioner Nevelos.
Commissioner Della Vecchia seconds the nomination. All Commissioners in
favor, Commissioner Nevelos is elected Vice Chairman of the Board of Police
Commissioners.

Chairman Verderame calls for a nomination for the position of Secretary.
Commissioner Nevelos nominates Commissioner Bedard. Commissioner Della
Vecchia seconds the nomination. All Commissioners in favor, Commissioner
Bedard is elected Secretary of the Board.



The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner David Della Vecchia.

Chairman Verderame called for a motion to approve the minutes of the
Regular Meeting of November 12, 2009.

MOTION made by Commissioner Bedard to approve

the minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 12, 2009
seconded by Commissioner Della Vecchia. Commissioner Pestillo
abstained. Four votes in favor, One abstention. Motion passed.

Chief Daly presented the monthly Munis report concerning the expenses paid
for the period November 1 to December 10, 2009.

Chairman Verderame called for a motion to approve billings presented to the
Commissioners for payment.

MOTION made by Commissioner Bedard to approve the
monthly Munis Report as submitted for period November 1, 2009
to December 10, 2009 seconded by Commissioner Nevelos.

All in favor, motion passed.

Report to Commissioners by Chief Daly.

First Item — Schedule of meeting dates, 2010. Chief Daly recited the
proposed meeting dates as January 14, February 11, March 11, April 8, May 13,
June 10, July 8, August 12, September 9, October 14, November 10 (Wednesday)
and December 9, 2010. Meetings are the second Thursday of every month except
the November 10, 2010 meeting which is a Wednesday evening due to the Veterans
Day Holiday. Meetings will be held in the Community Room at Police
Headquarters, 69 Lazy Lane at 6:00 p.m.

MOTION made by Commissioner Nevelos to approve
the proposed meeting dates January through December, 2010,
seconded by Commissioner Pestillo, All in favor, motion passed.

Second Item — Building Use Permit Application - Chief Daly explained that
the Department allows different groups throughout Town the use of the Community
Room at Police Headquarters on a regular basis. He explained that Sgt. DePalma
composed a form modeled after the form used by the Board of Education. (Passed



out a proposed form) He further commented that through the use of the form, a
record could be compiled of the individuals and/or organizations requesting the use
of the Community Room. Chief Daly further indicated that the question of a fee to
be charged should also be discussed. Chief Daly indicated that no fee has been
charged to date for use of the building as anyone using the Room is told to clean up
after themselves. Discussion amongst Commissioners and the decision was to use
the form but not to charge a fee.

Third Item — Canopy Coverage Area — Chief Daly discussed the Mercury
coverage area for the Mercury AP/RM System. He indicated that the map was a
rough estimate of the Department’s current coverage. He indicated that the
Southington Fire Department Company 2 was the most recent addition to the Access
Point locations. The tower covered a significant hole in the cloud with at least two
additional areas needed to be covered which are at Well 7 and 8 and at SFD
Company 3. Chief Daly indicated that both towers were likely to be included in the
Fiscal Year 2010-2011 budget. Chief Daly explained that what the coverage area
related to 1s the signal for the Department’s laptop computers. He further stated that
the radios still work in those specific areas but the laptop computers have limited
connectivity.

Commissioner Pestillo asked when the additional towers were up and running
would that make the Department at100% coverage. Chief Daly responded that he
did not believe the Department would ever be at 100% coverage; however when the
tower 1s up and running at SFD Company 3 that will cover the southern end of the
Town and he believed the tower at Well 7 and 8 would fill in more. Chief Daly
commented because of some areas of the Town due to the topography coverage will
still be tough.

Fourth Item — Water Department request - Chief Daly indicated that Mr. Tom
West from the Southington Water Department was once again requesting the
services of a Police Department officer to assist with the collection of both
controlled and non-controlled medications for incineration. Chief Daly indicated
that the medication return day held in the spring of 2009 was very successful and
Chief Daly stated if the Commissioners approved he would move forward with the
Southington Water Department toward the April 24, 2010 collection date.

MOTION made by Commissioner Pestillo to approve the
request by the Southington Water Department for police
services regarding the Southington Water Department’s



proposed April 24, 2010 collection day for controlled and
non-controlled medications, seconded by Commissioner Nevelos.
All in favor, motion passed.

Fifth Item — Computer Grant, JAG $30,000 IT Grant — Chief Daly explained
that the Department had applied for a $30,000 State of Connecticut JAG Local Pass
Through Grant. The Grant was awarded to the Department and we are currently in
the process of completing the paperwork so that the money can be received. He
indicated that the Grant monies would be used to update some of the IT equipment
and the equipment to be purchased via the Grant was compiled by the Department’s
IT Division based on the needs of the Department.

Sixth Item — Command Truck Radio Communication — Chief Daly
commented that the Command Vehicle had been secured through Grant monies and
the goal is to provide a radio communication system (said system is not an [T
solution, just the radio side of operations) that is inexpensive and capable of meeting
the Department’s demands for the lifetime of the truck (25 years). The price tag of
$65,000 is a good value.

The communication system will allow for multiple frequency use in many
different bands that is contained in a compact area within a designed cabinet. The
system will also allow the Department to adapt to different systems around the state.

The system is analog that can be upgraded to a digital system. We have also
elected to install only one radio dispatching station with an option to install up to
three more. The proposal given to us is from WPCS and is on a state bid. There is
an option for an onboard digital recorder for an additional cost of $1,296.25. The
digital recorder would not be needed during any Southington operation since we
record now at our Department but it will come in handy if we are deployed out of
town and recording 1s not available to us.

Chief Daly indicated that the $65,000 would be taken from the available
Asset Forfeiture Funds. Chief Daly reiterated that the Commission had discussed
this factor when the Command Vehicle Grant was first applied for in that 1t was
noted that some of the Asset Forfeit Funds would be required to fully equip the
Command Vehicle. Chairman Verderame asked if we had enough funds, answer
was yes. Commissioner Nevelos asked if Chief Daly wanted the recorder at this
time, answer was not at this time. Short discussion and Chief Daly stated that he
did not need a motion as this was Asset Forfeiture funding and he was just looking
for a general agreement to go forward. A general consensus was reach by the



Commissioners to go forward with the purchase of the radio equipment needed at
this time.

Seventh Item — Equipment Maintenance — gym equipment. Chief Daly turns
the discussion over to Capt. Simone who had secured all the quotes and research
concerning commercial treadmills. Capt. Simone referred to four vendors and had
further commented that it would be important to take the warranty period for the
machines into consideration also prior to making a final decision. Capt. Simone
discussed the two vendors he believed had the best offering taking into
consideration the warranty periods. Those two vendors were Total Fitness
Equipment and Peak fitness Equipment. Capt. Simone explained terms to the
Commissioners. Commissioner Bedard questioned if the warranty included the
motor, response was yes.

Chief Daly commented that there was a budget line for $4,000 under gym
equipment. We currently have four treadmills, two of which are currently
inoperable and the other two are older. Capt. Simone also indicated that they are
not repairable. Chairman Verderame questioned how many would be purchased.
Chief Daly responded only one for this year. Commissioner Pestillo asked if the
two treadmills were used treadmulls, response was yes and the cost for those two
treadmills was only $400 per machine. Commissioner Bedard asked for a
comparison of the two treadmills being considered. Commissioners reviewed the
specs.

MOTION made by Commissioner Bedard to approve the
purchase of a Matrix T3x commercial treadmill from

Peak Fitness Equipment of Avon, Ct. for the price of

$3,870, including shipping and handling. Furthermore

to approve the purchase with the condition of a 5-year

warranty on parts and a 3-year warranty on labor,

seconded by Commissioner Pestillo. All in favor, motion passed.

Eighth Item - Contested parking tags. A letters from a recipient of a tag had
been distributed to the Commissioners. Commission members had reviewed the
letter prior to the meeting including the recommendation of Lt. Edward Pocock as to
the action suggested to be taken concerning the tag. The following action was taken
by the Commission:

MOTION made by Commissioner Bedard to accept the



recommendations of Lt. Pocock concerning the recently received
contested parking tag, seconded by Commissioner Pestillo, all in favor
Motion passed.

A letter will be sent to the individual who had contested the issued tag.

Ninth Item — Animal Control, snow removal. Chief Daly turns the discussion
over to Capt. Simone. Capt. Simone indicated he had two estimates for the plowing
of driveway and parking area for snow at the dog pound. The two quotes were from
Schmidt Lawn Care $95 for 0 to 2 inches, $114 for 2 to 6 inches and $135 for 6 to
10 inches. Dan Quinlan Grounds Maintenance was $100 for 2 to 6 inches and $150
for 6 to 12 inches. Capt. Simone then stated our storms usually average from 2 to 6
inches and therefore Quinlan would be lower.

Chief Daly then commented the dog pound is a gravel driveway and 0 to 2
inches, the animal control officer has a four wheel drive vehicle and we would not
normally plow for O to 2 inches. The Town also had put the snow plowing services
out to bid but failed to incorporate the dog pound into the bidding process. It was
just realized with the first snow fall and we moved quickly to get these bids and that
1s why we do not have a third RFP. He further stated when the Town did seek bids
these two companies were the two lowest bidders and Schmidt actually does the
Police Department. Quinlan appears to be the lowest bidder for the animal control

property.

MOTION made by Commissioner Bedard to accept the bid of Dan
Quinlan Grounds Maintenance, LLC as cited, for snow removal

at the Animal Control property, seconded by Commissioner Della
Vecchia. All in favor Motion passed.

Tenth Item - Activity Reports Chief Daly called upon Capt. William
Palmieri to give the Operation Division’s Activity Report.

Parking Ride & Walk: The officers have continued to monitor the down town
parking area and identifying problems within the Southington center area.  Sgt.
Nicholas Spratto has taken the lead on this effort and on December 4, 2009
conducted a supervisory review and this month 14 concerns were noted from the
business owners. Captain Palmieri stated this was a positive effort which began
back in July, 2009 as a result of the parking issues. The program has now
blossomed into a discussion on issues that perhaps may not be police problems.



Due to the positive feedback, we will now be bringing into the mix the Parking
Authority. We will be giving the Parking Authority copies of the reports that have
been secured by the officers citing some of the concerns from the community and
the business owners because there may be a problem that the Police Department can
not address but the Parking Authority can or at least the Parking Authority will have
the reports for informational purposes.

Captain Palmieri commented on vehicles traveling the wrong way down
Center Street. He indicated that the problem seems to be occurring on Thursdays
and Fridays between the hours of 3:30 p.m. and 5:00 p.m. We will be having
directed patrols to address the issue.

Captain Palmieri further stated the parking enforcement within the
Southington Center and surrounding streets will be maintained. Additionally there
will also be an increase in police presence in the Plantsville Center area.

Next issue to address was the Click It or Ticket Program. Capt. Palmieri
commented that the program started on Monday, November 16" and ended on
November 29, 2009. This program is designed for the targeting and enforcing of
seatbelt restraint violations. During the program a combination of general patrol
enforcement and a series of targeted enforcement grants from the Conn. DOT. Our
Department partnered with the Plainville Police Department for the grant
enforcement.

He continued seatbelt use was surveyed in the area of Meriden-Waterbury
Turnpike and Tridell Drive prior to the start of the Program and a 72% usage rate
was identified. When the Program was completed, a second survey was completed
and a 76% usage rate was identified. Capt. Palmieri pointed out that was below the
state usage average of 86%. Capt. Palmieri indicated that he had spoken with Ed
Hedge of the State Department of Transportation and this year’s state average has
not as yet been determined but 1t was probably going to be about 86%. Capt.
Palmieri indicated that more directed patrols would be done in that area to increase
seat belt awareness and get the compliance increased.

Capt. Palmieri commented on the Departmental Click It or Ticket Program
and activities between November 16™ and 29" was as follows: Seat belt violations,
167 tickets issued, 26 written warnings; speeding violations, 2 tickets issued, 21
written warnings; DUI, 1 ticket issued, no written warnings; other traffic violations,
30 tickets 1ssued, 51 written warnings and non-traffic criminal arrests, 1 ticket



1ssued.

Commissioner Bedard questioned the seat belt violations, tickets versus
written warnings. Capt. Palmieri stated that with any action or enforcement
program he allows the officers a certain amount of discretion and if an officer
chooses an enforcement through a written warning it is still an enforcement action.
Capt. Palmieri further explained the different actions that can be taken during
enforcement action. Chief Daly further commented that our policy does not
mandate a specific enforcement action. Capt. Palmieri then stated on the seat belts,
the State likes to see tickets because that 1s how we received our grant
reimbursements.

Commissioners Nevelos had a question on cell phone enforcement and
Commissioner Pestillo had a question on speeding enforcement. Capt. Palmieri
answered their questions.

Capt. Palmieri then discussed the NIBRS reporting system. He commented
that NIBRS is National Incident Base Reporting System and the Federal
Government is trying to get all police departments throughout the United States to
report crime the same way. Consequently our Department submits our statistics to
the State. He spoke on the comparison in incidents between 2008 and 2009 wherein
the total reportable incidents for 2008 were 366 and in 2009 were 238. Capt.
Palmieri made reference to 2008 burglaries, where there were 100 burglaries at the
Spring Street Storage Sheds which occurred on November 16, 2009. He explained
that each incident is separate and that was why the increase in 2008 incidents.

Lastly Capt. Palmieri explained the officers’ monthly activity report which
gives a snapshot of activity.

Eleventh Item — Fiscal Year, 2010-2011 Budget. Chief Daly discussed the
possibility of scheduling a workshop to discuss the upcoming fiscal year budget.
Chief Daly indicated the budget would have to be ratified at the next Police
Commission meeting and asked if the Commissioners would like to schedule a
workshop. Commissioners agreed on Tuesday, December 29", 2009 at 6 p.m. as a
scheduled workshop meeting.

Twelfth Item — Pursuit Policy Review - Chief Daly turns discussion to Capt.
Simone. Capt. Simone indicated the policy has been a work in progress over the
past nine months and the policy mirrors the State policy that came out, adding in



fact that our Department’s policy is perhaps more stringent than the State policy.

He stated the Policy has been reviewed by the Town Attorney and he has signed off
on it and we are now looking to have the Policy adopted and get it out to our police
personnel. Commissioner Pestillo questioned the issue on road blocks. Captain
Simone commented that road blocks are not used very often and only as a last
resort. In order to do road blocks training has to occur, no training then it is not
used.

MOTION made by Commissioner Bedard to accept General
Order 100-42.2.8 concerning Vehicle Pursuits, effective

date of December 10, 2009, seconded by Commissioner
Nevelos. All in favor Motion passed.

Thirteenth Item - Officer’s educational request. Chief Daly commented on a
request from Sgt. Brad Blatchley requesting reimbursement only for any and all
books and material in conjunction with his pursuit of a higher education due to the
fact that he is receiving alternative funding through the U. S. Coast Guard. Chief
Daly then commented that this 1s a contractual issue and he commended Sgt.
Blatchley for using the U. S. Coast Guard to secure his educational funding. Chief
Daly also stated the money is in the budget for the payment.

MOTION made by Commissioner DellaVecchia to grant
the request of Sgt. Brad Blatchley for reimbursement

of books and materials that are not covered by the

U.S. Coast Guard, seconded by Commissioner

Pestillo. All in favor Motion passed.

Commissioner Bedard then makes a motion to add an
additional item N to the Agenda, the discussion of the K-9
seconded by Commissioner Nevelos. All in favor, motion
passed.

Chief Daly then commented that Officer Mahon had recently advised him that
his K-9 is getting on in years and we need to start thinking of the replacement of his
dog. Chief Daly indicated that Renbar Kennels had been contacted and they sent a
proposal. He indicated there is money in Asset Forfeiture to cover the cost of the
K-9 and training which would be $12,000. The Program will include a fully trained
police K-9, 8 week K-9 handler course and an equipment package, a six-month
health satisfaction guaranty. (The guaranty includes free replacement of the animal



